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TRANSBAY JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY 
 

 
REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS No. 15-01 

SPONSORSHIP OPPORTUNITIES 
 
 

QUESTIONS & ANSWERS 
 
The following questions were received related to the above-referenced RFP: 
 

1. Q:  Is it anticipated that the Transbay Transit Center will be a 24 hour operation? 
 
A:  The Transbay Transit Center will not be a 24 hour operation from the perspective of 
bus and rail operations. However, and more importantly, the Center will always be 
occupied and managed and represent the surrounding neighborhood with a world class 
international facility, illuminated and iconic, 24 hours a day throughout its existence. The 
Center will be one of the most visible and landmark structures in San Francisco.  
 

2. Q:  Will a proposer be able to declare a 501(c)(3) non-profit tax deduction? 
 
A:  The Transbay Joint Powers Authority (TJPA) is looking into the possibility of setting 
up a 501(c)(3).  Please note that TJPA cannot provide income tax advice to Sponsors.   
 

3. Q:  What is the percentage for art for the Transbay Transit Center? 
 
A:  While the TJPA is not subject to the City’s “Percent for Art Ordinance,” the TJPA 
has made a voluntary commitment of a $4.75 million art budget to fund the acquisition of 
artwork in the Transit Center in the spirit of that program.  The TJPA has allocated the 
budget to the installation of five large scale permanent works that are purposefully 
integrated into the design of the Center.  The artists are James Carpenter, Julie Chang, 
Tim Hawkinson, Jenny Holzer, and Ned Kahn, and the art program is being managed in 
coordination with the San Francisco Arts Commission. 
 

4. Q:  Did the Transbay Joint Powers Authority seek or obtain valuation guidance for the 
sponsorship opportunities? 
 
A:  The TJPA chose to issue this opportunity as a Request for Proposals to allow the 
community to value each sponsorship opportunity through a competitive bid process. 
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5. Q:  Will the Transbay Joint Powers Authority accept any bid for this opportunity? 
 

A:  We are trying to raise a minimum of approximately $38 million to fund the roof-top 
park. To that end, the TJPA will evaluate each proposal on the merits and accept a 
proposal(s) that provides the best overall value for the project.  
 

6. Q:  Will the Transbay Joint Powers Authority be looking to raise funds by providing 
naming opportunities on bricks? 
 
A:  We do not have bricks. However, we have benches throughout the park and the bus 
passenger loading areas at the Bus Deck and the Bus Plaza Levels that could offer 
naming opportunities. Around the Grand Hall Light Column, there are 8 glass seating 
elements which could also offer prominent naming opportunities.  Please note that the 
RFP specifically allows for a sponsor to suggest naming something that may not have 
been included in the RFP, such as benches. 

 
7. Q:  What is the Transbay Joint Powers Authority doing about water conservation for the 

park and the associated gardens? 

A:  One of the most visible sustainable features of the new Transit Center is the 5.4-acre 
rooftop park that will serve as a living roof on the Transit Center, reducing the urban heat 
island effect common in dense city environments and helping to filter the surrounding air.  
The park is being designed with efficient irrigation and drainage systems and will 
incorporate climate appropriate plants. 

The project will also earn several LEED credits for storm water runoff reduction, water 
conservation and irrigation water use reduction.  The current water system design will 
reduce total potable water use in the Transit Center by half and will address all aspects of 
water conservation including building uses, irrigation, water reuse and more.  The Transit 
Center will include storage tanks for greywater as well as storm water runoff from the 
rooftop park. 

As a result of our water conservation and other features such as the 5.4-acre rooftop park, 
the Transit Center is on track to earn a LEED gold rating. Other contributors to 
sustainability include:  

 
 Connection of 11 local, regional, and statewide transportation systems under a 

single roof, adding tens of thousands of riders to mass transit every day, thus 
decreasing reliance on regional highways, alleviating traffic, and reducing net 
emissions of greenhouse gases. Both employers and workers will benefit from 
improved commuting conditions. The new Transit Center will foster both 
residents' and commuters' shift away from cars by making transit, bike, and 
pedestrian access not only convenient but appealing. 

 
 Embodiment of San Francisco's and California's aggressive efforts to reduce 

greenhouse gas emissions.  The building incorporates natural ventilation, 



   

 
Page 3 of 3 

 

extensive daylight, ground-source heating and cooling, efficient HVAC and 
lighting systems, and a high-performance envelope. All of these strategies reduce 
the building's energy use and its associated carbon emissions by approximately 
40%. The building is using recycled and local construction materials which 
reduces manufacturing carbon emissions. The Transit Center will also conserve 
9.5 million gallons of water each year, reducing carbon emissions associated with 
water filtration and pumping. The carbon emissions saved from this water system 
are equivalent to planting 2 acres of forest each year. In addition, the 5.4 acre 
rooftop park includes more than 500 trees that will capture 12 tons of carbon 
annually. 

 
 The neighborhood surrounding the Transit Center will reinforce these effects and 

further reduce greenhouse gas emissions by creating pedestrian- and bike-friendly 
plazas, sidewalks, streets, and other amenities. The new Transbay neighborhood 
will bring residents close to jobs. Both residents and workers will enjoy proximity 
to shopping, restaurants, and parks, in addition to public transit. This type of 
vibrant, welcoming, and transit-rich urban center is key to fostering urban density, 
reducing emissions from vehicular travel, and cutting global emissions of 
greenhouse gases. 
 

8. Q:  Will the Transbay Joint Powers Authority be offering advertising opportunities? 
 
A:  Opportunities for general advertising are not offered in this Sponsorship RFP.  The 
TJPA may offer a general advertising opportunity for the Transit Center in the future 
through a separate process. However, TJPA will consider an offer that includes 
advertising opportunities. If an offer is provided that includes advertising opportunities 
please include an offer that does not include advertising opportunities as well.  
 

9. Q:  What are the retail opportunities planned for the Transit Center?  
 
A:  The TJPA issued a Master Retail Lessor/Facilities Operator/Event Programmer 
Request for Qualifications.  Please refer to the RFQ posted on the TJPA’s website at 
http://www.transbaycenter.org/rfp/master-retail-lessor-facilities-operator-event-
programmer for more information on the retail opportunities in the Transbay Transit 
Center.  The retail will be handled by the firm awarded that opportunity. 
 

10. Q:  Will there be naming exclusivity for the winning proposal? 
 
A:  As stated in the RFP, the TJPA contemplates entering into either a single agreement 
for Full Sponsorship of the entire Transbay Transit Center and all of its components, or 
several agreements for Sponsorship of individual components of the Transbay Program 
facilities, equipment, and services.  Sponsors of the entire Transit Center, the Transit 
Center Station, or the Rooftop Park would be awarded exclusive naming rights.  Sponsors 
of other facilities, equipment, or services would not be awarded naming exclusivity. 


